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We have received an alarming number of engineers 
who have reached their demise at the hands of 
COVID-19. The estimation of the total number of which 
we are still to establish. As in other sectors of the 
economy the engineering profession has not been 
spared and the effect of this will be felt moving forward, 
in terms of reduced engineer registration fees etc. 

Regulation is envisaged to also protect the welfare 
and interest of the public by providing safe, secure, and 
sustainable engineering services for future economic 
prosperity. ERB endeavours to inculcate the culture of 
ethics and quality amongst the engineering community 
as a contribution to Botswana vision of achieving 
prosperity for all by 2036.

Who we are

The Engineers Registration Board (ERB) is a regulatory 
body established in 2011 with a primary responsibility 
to regulate the activities and conduct of engineering 
professionals in accordance with the functions and 
powers conferred upon it by the Engineers Registration 
Act Cap 61:06 of 2009. 

By 31st of March 2021, the Board had registered a 
total of seven thousand seven hundred and eighty-
two (7,782) engineering professional, three thousand 
three hundred and forty-seven (3,347) of whom are 
in the professional category. Those registered in the 
professional category are expected to play a key role 
in the promotion of high standards in the engineering 
practice in Botswana through continuous elevation of 
their competence and those that they work with.



Register Engineering 
Technicians, Technologists 
and Engineers

Promotion of professional 
development in the 
engineering profession

Nurture professionalism 
and excellence

Contribute to the national 
engineering dialogue

Facilitate engagement of 
foreign engineers in the 
local market

Promote quality of 
engineering education

Marketing

Maintain a register of 
registered engineering 
professionals in Botswana

Develop and promote 
standards of professional 
practice and ethics

Our work
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It gives me great humility to be presenting 
the Engineer’s Registration Board’s annual 
report for the 2020/21 financial year.

The year started with a strategy refocusing exercise by 
the Board together with Board Committee members and 
Management. The refocusing was on the 2017-2021 
strategic plan, which had entered its last lap/year. This 
was particularly important because since this strategy was 
developed several Board members had retired and new 
members were appointed to replace them. The exercise, 
therefore, gave new members the opportunity to be intimate 
with the strategic objectives and initiatives that would be 
settled for in the remaining strategy period, hence positioning 
them well for transitioning to the next 5-year strategic plan 
was to be developed during the reporting period.

During the year under review, Board operations were 
negatively affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, which 
posed new challenges and as a black swan event it could 
not be ignored. Measures had to be put in place to prevent 
exposure to both the staff of ERB and our customers in the 
plight to ensure that services were availed. I am happy to 
report that, although the Secretariat experienced COVID-19 
positive cases, none of the staff members succumbed to 
the disease. Performance against the refocused strategy 
was subdued by the effects of COVID-19 on the business 
environment of the country where a substantial part of the 
engineering community experienced loss of business. 
Engineering professionals’ registration and renewal numbers 
significantly reduced. For the first time since the existence 
of the Board, the annual financial statements of the Board 
emerged with a qualified opinion by the Auditors. Other than 
the possible effect of the matter described in as the basis 
for the qualified opinion, the annual financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Engineers Registration Board as at 31 March 2021, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The basis for the qualification is centered on three 
aspects being, the Fee Income, Trade Receivables not 
complying with IFRS 9) and Contract Liabilities; all of 
which are explained in the Audited Financial Statement 
annexed to this report. The Board intends to address 
the findings of the Auditors with a view to achieving an 
unqualified opinion in future audits.

Dr. Sebusang Sebusang (Pr Eng) Chairperson

Dr. Sebusang Sebusang (Pr Eng) 
Board Chairperson
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The year in review by the 
Registrar

I am delighted to present the Engineers 
Registration Board report for the financial 
year ending 31st March 2021; being the 
last year for the Board’s third plan since 
existence, the 2017-21 Strategic Plan.

At the beginning of the reporting period, the Board underwent 

a strategy refocusing exercise to give the plan an optimised, 

fresh focus for the last planning period before expiry of the 

plan at end of March 2021. Strategic objectives adopted and 

initiatives identified to drive the objectives had to consider 

the New Normal brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, 

which affected the economy greatly and introduced a different 

approach to work and the adoption of virtual platforms. The 

refocusing of the strategy culminated into five priority areas 

which the Board was to concentrate on delivering against by 

developing aligned initiatives.

It became apparent halfway through the plan that the targeted 

population of prospective engineering professionals was 

going to be bypassed hence targets for the last two years 

of the plan were estimated. Therefore, the Board decided to 

commission a survey to determine the number of engineering 

professionals in the market. The result of this survey was to 

inform forecasting for the new strategic plan, 2022 -2026. 

However, the survey was not completed during the reporting 

period because of the effects of COVID-19 and non-

responsiveness of stakeholders. However, the survey was 

on course to be completed in the following financial year.

Increase Number of Registrants

Through this objective, the Board intended to increase the 

number of registrations through campaigns targeted towards 

various customer segments such as Government, SOEs and 

the Private Sector. Yet COVID-19 posed multiple challenges, 

digitization of registration processes ensured minimal disruptions 

to the business.

As at 31st March 2021, one thousand two hundred and four 

(1,204) engineering professionals were registered across 

Mr. Dennis A. Olaotse (Pr Eng) Registrar

the different disciplines and categories, bringing the 

cumulative total of the register to seven thousand seven 

hundred and eighty-two (7,782). The cumulative number 

of engineering professionals registered indicated an 

underperformance of 8.4% against the targeted 8,500. 

Amidst COVID-19 inflicted challenges alluded to, interventions 

applied towards the registration processes made it possible 

for the total number of registrants to fall close to the five-year 

average of 1,288 per year previously recorded.

National lockdowns brought about by the pandemic led 

to a general downward trend in the applications received 

and this was so because of the economic slowdown which 

left many engineering professionals without work. A similar 

downward trend was observed in the applications for 

practising certificate renewals.
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The year in review by the Registrar (cont.)

Implement Key Systems

Following commissioning of some of the modules of the ERP 

system, it became apparent that a full ERP suite of modules, 

including full integration across all modules and functions 

(Registration, Monitoring, Finance and Administration, HR, 

Website) had to be pursued to create a seamless and 

paperless internal and customer experience. This was achieved 

and additionally, a payment gateway was acquired to manage 

online payments, thus removing the need for clients to make 

payments physically at the office or at the bank.

Generate Non-Registration Revenue

During the period, the Board added a strategic objective 

seeking to improve the organization’s financial position 

through looking for alternative revenue streams, lobbying 

government for additional support, and shifting the narrative 

towards investments into effective regulation and its benefits.

The Board made a deliberate effort to diversify revenue 

and ensure that it has in place revenue streams that allow 

for significant collections. The target has been that the 

organization should have more than 50% of its revenue 

being derived from non-registration revenue. The major non-

registration revenue contributor has been the government 

subvention and just under 50% of the total revenue over the 

past five (5) years was derived from Government subvention.

The impact of COVID-19 was significant on the financial 

performance of the organization as revenues realized from fees 

(registration fees, workshops, forums, practicing) declined. 

Expenditure also went down during the financial year as 

operational activities (travel expenses, workshops, forums 

etc.) were subdued. The net effect was a total comprehensive 

surplus of P2,077,950 compared to a deficit of P994,951 in 

2019/2020.

Improve Monitoring

The strategic objective sought to enhance the Board’s 

monitoring capability through a monitoring strategy, improved 

processes and procedures, strategic collaborations, customer 

engagements, and forge ahead with the review of the Engineers 

Registration Act.

The Board continued to invest resources geared towards 

developing and implementing projects, programs, and policies 

to help decrease malpractice, encourage learning amongst 

engineering professionals and protect the interest and welfare 

of the public. To ascertain the effectiveness of these efforts, 

the Engineers Registration Board had to incorporate impact 

evaluations into its monitoring plans as a tool for learning 

and accountability and design projects and policies that are 

evidence - based. 

The Board did not gain much traction in the review of the 

Engineers Registration Act. The Board managed to approve 

the final report from the Reference Group and made its 

recommendations to the Minister at the end of the first quarter 

of the financial year. Unfortunately, the year ended without any 

further progress. 

Increase Awareness among Stakeholders

The Board has over the years realized the benefits of 

marketing efforts in terms of increased registration numbers 

and general stakeholder interest. The objective for the year 

under review was to increase marketing and publicity activities 

through workshops, social media, website, radio, television; 

and measuring the effectiveness of marketing.

Conventional marketing efforts like exhibitions and print media 

advertising were almost impossible due to the Covid-19 

pandemic. The Board, therefore, increased its utilization of 

digital marketing platforms which proved to bear the much-

needed fruits given the challenges posed by the pandemic. 

Not only was the decision cost-efficient, but it also 

demonstrated heightened engagement with stakeholders in 

general through page engagements and enquiries. A rise in 

traffic to the digital registration platforms was also realized 

as a result. Stakeholder engagements continued to also be 

pursued in the form of virtual presentations and workshops.
Mr. Dennis A. Olaotse (Pr Eng) 

Registrar
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Board members

PhD (Systems and Control Engineering) 
MBA
BEng (Hons) Mechanical Engineering

BSc (Electrical Engineering)

BEng (Hons) Mechanical

MSc Construction Management 
BSc (Civil Engineering)

Master of Engineering Science 
BSc (Civil Engineering)

Dr. Sebusang Sebusang 
Chairperson

Ms. Gaonyatsege Kwakwa
Vice Chairperson

Mr Ketsile G. Kutoro
Member

Mr. Jenamiso Mphake
Member

Mr. Kobamelo Kgoboko 
Member
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Board members (cont.)

MEng (Engineering Management) 
BEng (Hons) Instrumentation and Control
BTEC Diploma (Electronic and 
Microprocessors)

BSc (Civil Engineering)

Mr. Francis Mokone 
Member

Mr. Oliver M. Balebeng
Member
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Board committees and participation

Chairman

Vice Chairperson

Member

Member

Member up to (31st December 2020)

Member 

Member  

Member (appointment - 31st March 21)

Chairman

Member

Member

Member (appointment - 11 March 2021)

Member (appointment - 11 March 2021)

Chairman (member until 2021)

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Dr. S.E.M. Sebusang

Mrs. Gaonyatsege Kwakwa

Mr. Kobamelo Kgoboko

Mr. Francis Mokone

Mr. Keitsile G Kutoro

Mr. Oliver.  M Balebeng

Mr Jenamiso Mphake

Ms Angela Flavia Urio

Mr Francis Mokone

Mr Kitso Mocuminyane 

Mr Ishmael Akuje

Mr Ontlametse Kgotla

Mr Benny Medupe

Mr Ketsile Kutoro

Joy-Marie Marebole

Ivy Ramalohlanye

Daniel Mahupela 

Shadrack C. Kobole

Angela Flavia Urio (appointment - 31st March 21)

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

2/4 

3/4

3/4

0/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

0/4

0/4

3/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

0/4

Name

Name

Name

Board Designation

Designation

Designation

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

Table 1: Board Composition & Board members attendance

Table 2: Finance, Procurement and Asset Disposal Committee Composition & Attendance

Table 3: Human Resource and Governance Committee Composition & Attendance

FINANCE, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET DISPOSAL COMMITTEE (FPADC)

HUMAN RESOURCE AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (HRGC)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Engineers Registration Board (ER) Act provides that the Board shall comprise seven members. During the year 

under review, the Board composition was constituted as indicated below in accordance with the provisions of Section 

1 (1) of the Schedule to the ER Act: 

Board Members are as follows:
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Board committees and participation (cont.)

Chairman 

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Kobamelo Kgoboko                      

Neo Kwakwa

Sedze Sosome

Joseph Chuma

Len Dimbungu

David Hobona

Lizzy Tsheko

Gaonyatsege Kwakwa

Khupo Prudence Mabua

Thato Tsalaile

Letina Disaitsanyeng

Rebaone Lechuti-Tlhalerwa     

Same Makuku

Tusha Nkhwazi

Khaulani Fichani

Lizzy Tsheko   

Cyril Vista       

8/9

0/9

9/9
8/9

0/9
9/9

9/9

3/4

1/4

1/4

1/4

2/4

1/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

2/4

Name

Name

Designation

Designation

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

Table 4: Registration Committee Composition & Attendance

Table 5: Standards and Professional Practice Committee Composition & Attendance

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

STANDARDS AND PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE COMMITTEE
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Corporate structure

Board of
Directors

Registrar

Personal
Assistant to the

Registrar

Monitoring
Manager

Standards
Manager

Registration
Manager

Finance and
Administration

Manager

Accounts
Officer

Registration
Officer

Applications

Registration
Officer

Database

Registration
Officer

Certificate
Issuance

Administration
Officer

Receptionist

Monitoring
Officer

Standards
Officer

Information &
Communications

Technology
Officer

Assistant
Administration

Officer

Customer 
Service and 
Registration 

Officer

Figure 1: ERB Corporate structure
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Executive leadership team

Certified Director (SA)
MBA (Business Administration)
BEng EE (Electrical & Electronics)

MPhil (Knowledge and Information 
Management)
BBus (Information Systems)

MA (Administration in Leading 
Innovation and Change)
BEng (Mechanical Engineering)

PhD-candidate (Business Management)
MSc (Finance)
MSc (Strategic Management)
Degree in Accounting
ACCA Associate Member

MSc (Project Management)
Postgraduate Certificate (Enterprise
Risk Management)
BEng (Civil Engineering)

Mr. Dennis A. Olaotse 
Registrar

Ms. Clare H. Mosarwa
Standards Manager

Ms. Mercy Kgosidialwa
Registration Manager

Mr. Nzima E. Poely
Finance & Admin Manager

Mr. Karisutu Joas 
Monitoring Manager
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ERB Staff



The last 5 years through 
a lens
At the end of the current reporting period, the Board had 

just reached the end of the second strategic planning 

period (2017 -2021), whose aim was to transition the Board 

toward operational stability and performance improvement. 

This strategic plan, therefore, focused on strengthening 

the core, while improving access and engagement with 

our stakeholders. More emphasis was put in the 

achievement of identified strategic themes, through 

implementation of key strategies that were expected to 

deliver key outputs, the attainment of which was what 

the Boards’ performance was measured against.

Three strategic themes which formed the direction of the 

strategic plan were:

It is point worthy to give a bird’s eye view on the Board’s 

performance against key strategies for each of the 

planning periods of this plan to give a holistic picture of 

its successes and failures. The below, therefore, seeks to 

illustrate ERB’s strategic journey from the first planning 

period to the last, of the 2016/17 – 2020/21 Strategic 

Plan. 

YEAR 1 (2016/17)

YEAR 2 (2017/18)

Registration of Engineering Professionals, where 

we targeted to register 90% of the eligible “pool” of 

engineering professionals in Botswana.

Financial Sustenance, with a target to generate 80% 

of the ERB budget over the five years of the plan, 

and 

Reducing Malpractice and Negligence, which targeted 

reducing the number of engineering malpractice / 

negligence cases in Botswana.

Registration growth realised was 2.2% from 1208 to 

1242 - application success rate was improved due to 

initiatives that reduced non-compliant applications.

The financial system employed by the Board was rigid 

and did not allow for customisation and integration with 

the Registration Management System. Errors could 

occur between the two that could lead to inaccurate 

transactions and wrong reporting. This called for plans 

to be made for a new integrated system.

A 3-year marketing strategy seeking to promote the ERB 

brand and to also promote engineering at grassroots 

level (and as career of choice) was developed. 

Development and approval of the Continuing Professional 

Development (CPD) Policy and gazetting of the Engineers 

Registration Regulations.

Multiple stakeholder engagement workshops were 

held in major cities and towns around the country 

concentrating on Competency Report Writing, Code 

of Professional Conduct and Ethics, and CPD Policy 

rollout and the turnout was pleasing. 

Revenue generated from operations, yet it stood at 

51.7% of the total income, was far below expenditure. 

Total income for the year stood at BWP 12,579,290 

(inclusive of BWP 6,080,070 subvention). 

Comprehensive income (surplus) for the year increased 

from BWP 1,352,479 to BWP 2,848,757 

The registration target was 70% of the estimated 

5500 population determined in 2015 and 1321 (6,4% 

growth compared to the previous year) engineering 

professionals were registered bringing the cumulative 

total to 4196, 6.3% above the target (3850). Growth was 

attributable to rigorous public education plus mission 

specific workshops that demystified misconceptions 

and clarified application requirements.

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

15
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The last 5 years through a lens (cont.)

YEAR 3 (2018/19)

The high number of registered engineering professionals 

was a clear sign of the availability of capacity in the 

country of duly qualified professionals who could be 

utilised to deliver quality projects.

In January 2018 the Board started implementing the CPD 

Policy following its extensive rollout. Thus, renewal 

of Practicing Certificates required Professionals to 

produce evidence of having earned a minimum of 3 

professional development credits.

The Board recorded a total of 23 fraud and malpractice 

cases, which were reported to the police. One individual 

was given a suspended sentence for fraud by the 

Magistrate Court. 

The financial position of the Board experienced a positive 

outlook; cash generated from operating activities 

grew by BWP 0.7 million and year-end cash and cash 

equivalent, as well as asset base each realised a real 

growth of BWP 3.5 million.

Total income was BWP 14,544,437 (including subvention 

of BWP 6,779,520) and surplus for the year grew by 

15.5% from BWP 2,848,757 to BWP 3,289,499.

Board took a strategic decision to procure an office 

building to avoid the hefty rental cost it was incurring.  

The total cost of the identified building was BWP 9.7 

million and a deposit of BWP 3,5 million was provided 

for during the financial year. 

The Initial Professional Development (IPD)Policy and 

Guidelines for Mentorship and Coaching were developed 

and approved during the year. Discipline Specific 

Guidelines were also launched.

ERB participated for the first time in the Botswana 

Consumer Fair and scooped second price in the 

exhibition competing against other regulators. This was 

a milestone attesting to its worth in the local regulatory 

space.

A tender award was done, and development started on 

the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system that 

would integrate the finance & payroll, procurement, 

human resource management and the upgraded 

registration management system into one to optimise 

efficiency and effectiveness of processes.

Twenty-three court interdicts for people practicing 

engineering without registration were filed with the 

court. Twenty-one of those were employees of our 

parent ministry and two were from the private sector. 

Starting with our parent ministry was in order that the 

message is clear to everybody that the Board shall act 

against non-compliance and working without being 

registered.

Review of ER Act commenced November 2018 when 

consultations were done with individual engineers across 

the country. A Reference Committee was then set up 

and it started sitting in December of the same year 

with a view to complete the review of the consultation 

process in the coming year.  

Board continued to surpass its registration target by 

registering a cumulative total of 5,525 against a target of 

4,675. 1,329 engineering professionals were registered 

during the year. This success was attributable to 

aggressive and multiple initiatives, including improving 

the effectiveness of the registration toolkit, reengineering 

processes, and intensified marketing activities.

3,280 Practicing Certificates were renewed, thus 83% of 

the target

YEAR 2 (2017/18) (cont.)
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The last 5 years through a lens (cont.)

YEAR 3 (2018/19) (cont.)

YEAR 4 (2019/20)

HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2020/21 (YEAR 5)

Total revenue was BWP 14,211,366, including the 

subvention that remained the same as for the previous 

year.

The Board hosted a successful inaugural Engineers 

Forum in July 2019, hosting more than five hundred 

engineers from across the SADC region.

ERB took part in the inaugural international 

commemoration of World Engineering Day on 4th 

March 2020. 

Yet revenues increased by 15% a comprehensive 

income deficit of BWP 994,951 was realised for the 

year because operation costs increased by 14% from 

BWP 14,536,256 in 2019 to BWP 16,635,314 in 2020. 

Significant expenses were experienced in marketing, 

the engineer’s forum and staff costs.

The Board found it prudent to commit the accrued 

retained earnings towards purchase of own building 

and a resolution was reached for the Secretariat to 

conclude the transaction. ERB were handed the building 

in October 2019 and took occupation of the new 

building in December 2019.

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed with 

Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA), a signatory 

of the International Engineering Alliance (IEA); in order 

for ECSA to mentor and assist ERB in its endeavour to 

become a signatory of IEA.

The register grew to 6,720 registrants against a stretched 

target of 8,000 with 1,464 engineering professionals 

registering during the year.

A total of ten court cases which arose following the 

twenty-three court interdicts applied for last year. Of 

the MIH cases, five were concluded in ERB’s favour, 

another five lapsed due to time passage and the 

remaining eleven respondents were not served. Two 

cases with individuals from the private sector were 

lost with costs.

The annual Engineers Forum was postponed to future 

years due to the COVID-19 pandemic that made it 

impossible for gatherings and a virtual forum could 

not be arranged as efforts were directed to lessening 

the effects of the pandemic. 

A total of one thousand two hundred and four (1,204) 

engineering professionals were registered across the 

different disciplines and categories, bringing the 

cumulative total of the register to seven thousand seven 

hundred and eighty-two (7,782).

Lockdowns brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic 

led to low business activity and the downward trend 

in the number of applications for registration and 

renewals.

The lockdowns also led to the introduction of work 

from home, where internet services had to be provided 

for staff. The Board also increased its utilization of 

digital marketing platforms which proved to bear the 

much-needed fruit. All meetings were held virtually, 

and everybody had to adjust to the New Normal, as it 

was affectionately called.
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Having adopted a lean organisational structure to 

effectively finance its operations the Board found 

itself having to be innovative in rolling out its mandate 

and this included developing effective collaborative 

structures with assessors, competent authorities such 

as BQA, and other engineering regulatory bodies. 

Through such a network, the Board continued to 

seamlessly deliver its key functions through the input 

of competent professionals and organisations.

Revenues of the organization dipped in comparison 

to the previous two (2) years due to lower levels of 

applications for registration and registration fees collected 

compared to the previous two (2) years.

Total revenue slightly dropped by 2.34% to P15, 274,831 

compared to the previous year. Total operating expenditure 

was subdued to the value of P13,196,881 compared 

to P16,635,314 last year and this was attributable to 

reduced spending in certain areas because of the 

pandemic.

The Board approved a proposal and project for ERB 

to embark on a journey to become a member of the 

International Engineering Alliance (IEA). This initiative 

is in line with ERB’s objective of advancing and 

promoting the standards of engineering in Botswana 

with the intent to advance its long-term strategy of 

playing a meaningful role in Botswana’s education 

standards, as well as facilitating for mobility of local 

engineering professionals. The Board in this regard 

has allowed ERB to work towards IEA membership 

under the mentorship of the Engineering Council of 

South Africa (ECSA) and in collaboration with BQA for 

the education standards.

Since the launch of Continuing Professional Development 

Policy in 2017 the first 3-year cycle elapsed, and an 

audit was performed where it was found out that during 

that cycle only 15.03 % of Engineering Professionals 

were able to accumulate 15 or more CPD credits 

required. The Expectation is that all Engineering 

Professionals whose CPD cycles began at the end 

of 2017 should have accumulated 15 credits at the 

end of the 3-year cycle to retain registration and be 

able to apply for renewal of Practicing Certificates. 

New strategies are therefore required to deal with 

challenges affecting CPD policy implementation.



Progress against 
strategic priorities
The financial year 2020/2021 marked the final year of 
the ERB Strategic Plan 2017-2021 and priority areas for 
the period under review were reviewed and refocused 
for optimization in the twelve (12) months that remained. 
The areas of priority were:

UNDERTAKE MARKET SIZING 
EXERCISE

INCREASE AWARENESS 
AMONG STAKEHOLDERS

INCREASE NUMBER OF 
REGISTRATIONS

IMPLEMENT KEY SYSTEMS

IMPROVE MONITORING

GENERATE NON-REGISTRATION 
REVENUE

19
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UNDERTAKE MARKET SIZING EXERCISE

Objective Statement:

Undertake market sizing exercise to understand the size 

of the market (the number of engineering professionals 

in the market).

The project to determine market size, inspired by a 

pursuit for excellence by ERB was started in September 

2020. The objective was to determine ERB market size 

in order to determine services that required to satisfy 

our customers. The results of this survey were to assist 

ERB in driving its mandate of quality and regulation of 

the engineering profession. ERB intends to share data 

relating to number of engineers, technologists and 

technicians with relevant stakeholders such as those 

dealing with immigrant work permits, the procuring entities 

in search of engineering competence, employers and 

policy makers. 

The objective of this study is to establish a database of

all engineering professionals, determine the size of the 

market and to assess the impact of ERB in the Industry 

with regard to registration and regulation. This project 

was awarded to Orcalo (Pty) Ltd at a cost of three hundred 

and sixty-six thousand five hundred pula (BWP366, 

500.00) and is envisaged to be completed in July of 2021.

INCREASE NUMBER OF REGISTRATIONS

Objective Statement: 

To increase the number of registrations through targeted 

campaigns towards customer segments 

(Government, State Owned Enterprises, and Private).

The Boards’ resolute efforts in driving registration in the 

year under review remained visible throughout the year 

despite the numerous challenges posed by the Covid-19 

pandemic. Through the digitisation of registration 

processes, disruptions to this core business of the Board 

were minimised. The interventions applied towards the 

registration process, which included self-registration 

through the portal, remote assessment of applications 

by assessors, and meeting via virtual platforms made it 

possible for the Board to reach its envisioned registration 

target. One key benefit of the use of virtual meeting 

platforms was that it made it possible for all the 

individuals in the registration value chain to participate in 

all proceedings, resulting in rich knowledge exchanges 

which had been lost in the past due to non-attendance 

of physical meeting.

A total of one thousand two hundred and four (1,204) 

engineering professionals were registered across the 

different disciplines and categories, bringing the cumulative 

total of the register to seven thousand seven hundred and 

eighty-two (7,782). The cumulative number of engineering 

professionals registered by 31st March 2021 indicated 

an underperformance of 8.4% against the targeted 8,500 

(figure 2). However, the interventions applied towards the 

registration processes made it possible for this number to 

fall close to the five-year average of 1,288 engineers per 

year (figure 2).

The national lockdowns brought about by the pandemic led 

to a general downward trend in the applications received 

and this was so because of the economic slowdown which 

left many engineering professionals without work. A similar 

downward trend was also observed in the applications for 

practising certificate renewals

ENGINEERS REGISTRATION BOARD
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Progress against strategic priorities (cont.)
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Figure 2: Registered vs. Target

Figure 3: No. Registered
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The registration statistics indicate that the engineering 

sector in Botswana has a large population of Graduate 

Engineering Practitioners (43%) who are essentially in 

training to become Professionals or be able to operate with 

a higher degree of independence, and most importantly 

advanced competence. 32% of the engineering practitioners 

registered are those in Professional Category and 

these individuals have the responsibility of training 

and mentoring those in the Graduate and Registered 

categories. The statistics imply that all things being equal, 

each individual registered in the Professional category 

has the responsibility of upskilling at least two engineering 

practitioners in the Graduate and Registered categories, 

which is a globally acceptable standard. Through the 

implementation and monitoring of the Initial Professional 

Development (IPD) policy, the Board envisions that this 

will be possible in the short to medium term.

25%

32%

43%

45%
20%

27%

9%



ENGINEERS REGISTRATION BOARD

Progress against strategic priorities (cont.)

22

Male

Botswana
China
India
South Africa
Zimbabwe
Tanzania
Zambia
Phillipines
United 
Kingdom
Kenya

Female
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Figure 7: Registration per Nationality
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Civil Engineering continues to be the dominant discipline 

with a representation of 45% of the register. This in itself 

indicates that as a developing country, Botswana has 

the capacity to implement its infrastructure development 

projects. The representation of the other disciplines also 

indicates that the necessary support is available for these 

types of projects. The country does however need to 

make a deliberate decision to train its human resource in 

more specialised engineering fields which are demanded 

by the complexity of the emerging infrastructure projects. 

For instance, the just completed Kazungula bridge 

project and the current Western By-pass interchange 

projects revealed the need for engineering practitioners 

experienced in Bridge Engineering and Water Engineering. 

Due to a shortage of this expertise locally, these projects 

resorted to sourcing these skills from outside the country.

It is also noteworthy that Mining Engineering and its 

related disciplines is represented by only 9% of the register. 

This implies that the country needs to invest more in 

training for this industry to match its current growth which 

is evidenced by the extension of existing mine lifespans, 

the resuscitation of some dormant mines, mineral exploration, 

and the licensing of new mines in the Country.

The female representation in the engineering industry 

(14%) indicates that greater effort should be exerted in 

selling engineering careers in a more appealing manner 

to the girl child. Our marketing efforts continue to take this 

into consideration, including the deliberate use of more 

females in advertisements, sponsorships of events which 

bring the spotlight upon female engineers, featuring female 

engineers in events such as the Engineers Forum, and 

profiling female engineers in national publications.
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Progress against strategic priorities (cont.)

Whilst Batswana make up a healthy proportion of the 

register (77%), a concerning indicator is that more than 

50% of those individuals are not practising. Moreover, a 

great proportion not practising are those registered in 

the Graduate Category. Whilst the Board endeavours 

to ensure that these graduates receive appropriate 

training through the implementation of the IPD policy, it 

is important that Government complements these efforts 

through job creation efforts, skills transfer requirements 

for investor driven projects, and reservation of work for 

Batswana, amongst others.

IMPROVE MONITORING

Objective Statement:

To enhance monitoring capability through a monitoring 

strategy, improved processes and procedures, strategic 

collaborations, customer engagement, and a review 

of the Act

The Board is investing resources every year in developing 

and implementing projects, programs and policies to 

help decrease malpractice, encourage learning amongst 

engineering professionals and protect the interest and 

welfare of the public. As much as it is important to have 

these projects in place, good intentions alone are not 

enough. Therefore, it is equally crucial to understand the 

impacts these interventions are making. To justify that these 

efforts are effective in manifesting change, the Engineers 

Registration Board is increasingly incorporating impact 

evaluations into their monitoring plans as a tool for learning 

and accountability and design projects and policies that are 

evidence – based. Furthermore, the Board has a desire to 

achieve collaborative goals that enable organisations to 

work together to achieve solutions that are beyond the 

jurisdiction of any one organisation.

To drive the two strategic goals of decreasing malpractice 

and improve monitoring objectively and effectively monitor 

engineering practices in the country with the aim to 

decrease engineering malpractice and negligence and 

to build monitoring capacity and drive compliance to 

engineering standards and ethics throughout Botswana 

respectively, the Board in April 2020 identified priority 

areas for the business to focus on for the last 12 months 

of the planning period of the 2020/2021. The monitoring 

Department strategic initiatives were refocused to 

enhance monitoring capability through a monitoring 

strategy, improved processes and procedures, strategic 

collaborations, customer engagement and reviewing the 

ER Act. 

INCREASE AWARENESS AMONG STAKEHOLDERS

Objective Statement:

Increase marketing and publicity activities through 

workshops, social media, website, radio, tv; and 

measuring the effectiveness of marketing.

The Board has over the years realized the benefits of 

marketing efforts in terms of increased registration 

numbers and general stakeholder interest. In the year under 

review, conventional marketing efforts like exhibitions 

and print media advertising were somewhat near 

impossible due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Board, 

therefore, increased its utilization of digital marketing 

platforms which proved to bear the much-needed fruit 

given the challenges posed by the pandemic. Not only 

was this decision cost-efficient, but the indicators also 

demonstrated heightened engagement with stakeholders 

in general through page engagements and enquiries. A 

rise in traffic to the digital registration platforms was also 

realized as a result. Stakeholder engagements continued 

to also be pursued in the form of virtual presentations and 

workshops.

Engagements through Facebook resulted in a 56.5% 

reach growth from the previous year, whilst the website 

traffic indicators showed an audience growth from 

76.3% in 2020 to 80.9% in 2021. It is important to note 
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that the website audience growth attributed to was that 

of new visitors to the ERB website. Indicators also show 

that there was growth in the number of people searching 

for the ERB website in comparison to 2020. Organic 

searches accounted for 62.9% of the ERB website traffic 

in 2020, and that number increased to 66.8% in 2021, and 

this growth is attributed to Search Engine Optimisation 

efforts.

New Visitor Returning Visitor

Apr 1, 2020 - Mar 31, 2021 Apr 2, 2019 - Mar 31, 2020

Figure 9: Website visitor statistics 19/20 Vs 20/21
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Figure 10: Organic website search 19/20 Vs 20/21
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Progress against strategic priorities (cont.)

IMPLEMENT KEY SYSTEMS

Objective Statement: 
To implement the full ERP suite of modules – including 
full integration across all modules and functions 
(Registration, Monitoring, F&A, HR, Website) and creating a 
seamless and paperless internal and customer experience.

In 2018 ERB embarked on a project to integrate its main 
management systems (financial management, human 
resources, and the registration system). The project has 
been a success and its bearing fruits. 
The implementation of the ERP was intended to increase 
efficiencies in service delivery to clients and to also refocus 
resources on more strategic projects as opposed to 
repetitive operational tasks. The upgrade of the system 
included an upgrade of the Registration and Accounting 
systems and integrating the two for a more seamless 
process. The Registration System upgrade included a 
self-service portal which would allow clients to manage 
their registration real-time. Moreover, a payment gateway 
was acquired to manage online payments, removing the 
need for clients to make payments physically at the office 
or at the bank.

GENERATE NON-REGISTRATION REVENUE

Objective Statement: 
To improve the organization’s financial position through 
seeking alternative revenues, lobbying government 
for additional investment into ERB, and shifting the 
narrative towards investments into effective regulation 
and its benefits.

The Board made a deliberate effort to diversify revenue 
and ensure that it has in place revenue streams that 
allow for significant collections. The target has been that 
the organization should have more than 50% of its 
revenue being derived from non-registration revenue. 
The major non-registration revenue contributor has 
been the government subvention and almost 50% of 
total revenue over the past five (5) years was derived 
from Government subvention. Other contributors to this 
revenue category were the Engineers Forum that was 
held in 2019 (unfortunately due to COVID-19 it had 
to be suspended thereafter), workshops and sale of 
merchandise. The graph below shows the record of non-
registration revenue.

Figure 11: Five (5) Year Revenue Streams

2017 BWP 2018 BWP 2019 BWP 2020 BWP 2021 BWP

Five (5) Year Revenue Streams

Non Registration RevenueRegistration Revenue

6,241,892

7,266,356
8,072,909

6,384,352
7,220,012

8,223,991

7,416,372
7,016,570

7,722,389

7,016,710
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The impact of COVID-19 was significant on the financial 

performance of the organization, although the Government 

did not reduce the approved subvention the revenues 

realized from the engineers’ fees (registration fees, 

workshops, forums, practicing fees declined). Expenditure 

also went down during the financial year as operational 

activities were subdued (travel expenses, workshops, 

forums etc.). The net effect was a total comprehensive 

surplus of P2,077,950 compared to a deficit of P994,951 

in 2019/2020.

Income

The revenues of the organization dipped in comparison 

to the previous two (2) years, the cause of this is mainly 

attributable to lower levels of applications for registration 

and registration fees collected compared to the previous 

two (2) years. The Engineering Forum did not take place 

during the financial year and hence the revenue associated 

with it could not be realized.

Government Grant

Registration Fees

Application fees

Practicing Fees

Duplicate Certificate Fee

Workshops Income

Other Operating Income

Finance Income

6,080,070

1,099,793

2,538,469

2,740,495

5,500

114,963

19,000

27,859

6,779,520

1,124,749

2,068,768

4,525,372

3,500

42,528

143,231

51,291

6,779,520

1,045,464

1,714,702

4,500,190

6,000

165,490

9,819

61,881

6,844,600

1,718,167

1,263,250

4,426,788

8,167

1,164,938

186,193

28,260

6,933,980

941,974

1,349,500

5,774,185

7,250

148,129

132,504

5,399

Revenue BWP

2017

BWP

2018

BWP

2019

BWP

2020

BWP

2021

Table 6: Five (5) Year Revenue Comparisons

Five (5) Year Revenue Comparisons

Figure 12:  Government Subvention Vs Other Revenues

Figure 12 above shows the decline 

in internally generated revenues 

for the year 2021.

Five (5) Year Government Subvention Vs Internally Generated Revenues

2017 BWP 2018 BWP 2019 BWP 2020 BWP 2021 BWP

Other RevenuesGovernment Revenues

Government Subvention Vs Other Revenues

6,546,079
6,080,070

6,779,520
7,959,439
6,779,520 6,884,600

8,795,763

6,933,980

8,358,941
7,503,546
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Financial management (cont.)

Figure 13: Government Subvention Vs Other Revenues

Figure 13 below further illustrates the performance of 

internally generated revenues compared to the government 

subvention. Internal generated revenues amounted to 54.7% 

of the total revenues of the period.

Government Grant Other revenues

Government Subvention Vs Other Revenues

Expenditure and Income

Although revenues declined from 2020 by 2% to 

P15, 274,831 in 2021, operating expenses for the 

same period declined by 21% from P16,635,314 

in 2020 to P13,196,881 resulting in a surplus of 

P2,077,950.

Total Revenues

Total Operating Expenses

Total Comprehensive (deficit)/surplus

12,626,149

9,777,392

2,848,757

14,738,959

11,449,460

3,289,499

14,283,066

14,536,256

(253,190)

15,640,363

16,635,314

(994,951)

15,274,831

13,196,881

2,077,950

Year

Five (5) Year Period Revenues Vs Expenditure

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Table 7: Five (5) Year Period Revenues Vs Expenditure

Figure 14: Expenditure and Income
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Achieving through others & collaborations

At inception of the ERB Secretariat, the Board took a 

strategic decision to adopt a lean organisational structure 

to be able to effectively finance the operations. This meant 

the Board had to be innovative in terms of how it rolled 

out its mandate and this included developing effective 

collaborative structures with assessors, competent 

authorities such as BQA, and other engineering regulatory 

bodies. Through this intricate network, the assessment of 

applications for registration, amongst other key functions, 

is able to occur seamlessly and through the input of 

competent professionals and organisations.

The Board recognises these structures as key to the 

achievement of its mandate and therefore continually 

capacitates them through periodic training internally 

and through partnerships such as those the Board has 

with ECSA. In the year under review, three such trainings 

occurred. 

ERB in collaboration with ACEB have developed the 

Framework for professional fees and its implementation 

guidelines in a quest to improve project costing and 

payments. This framework is intended to replace the 

2015 Professional Fees currently in use.

STRATEGIC COLLABORATIONS WITH KEY 

STAKEHOLDERS 

The Engineers Registration Board had five (5) formal and 

active collaborations (Memoranda of Understandings) 

with Botswana Qualifications Authority (BQA), Botswana 

Institution of Engineers (BIE), Association of Consulting 

Engineers Botswana (ACEB), Engineering Council of South 

Africa (ECSA) and PPADB (latest concluded) in October 

2020. Additional collaborations were being finalised 

between Gaborone City Council and the Directorate on 

Corruption and Economic Crime (DCEC). 

The MOUs are meant to assist the Board in carrying out 

its mandate of regulating the engineering profession.  

In order to develop and review qualifications, BQA will 

mobilise, through the Engineers Registration Board, 

stakeholders in the engineering sector to develop 

qualifications for the prioritised national human resource 

knowledge and skills needs for the Engineering sector. 

Through Engineering Council of South Africa, the parties 

agreed to develop mechanisms to collaborate on issues 

around accreditation, mobility of registered engineering 

professionals, mentorship, continuing professional 

development and knowledge exchange. Collaboration 

between the Engineers Registration Board and PPADB, 

will help the two parties to meet and communicate 

regularly to discuss matters of common interest to 

enable ease of monitoring compliance within projects. 

Last, but not least, the Engineers Registration Board 

has a collaboration with the Association of Consulting 

Engineers Botswana in order to help each other in terms 

of the development of standards and engineering 

policies. Lastly, Botswana Institution of Engineers as a 

recognised voluntary professional body is one of the 

key strategic partners of ERB in providing continuous 

professional development programs and services for 

engineering professionals. Implementation of the MoU’s 

between the above-mentioned key stakeholders is 

envisaged to provide a harmonious working relationship 

between ERB and the stakeholders for the continual 

development, upgrading and promotion of professional 

engineering practice in Botswana.

BOPEU/ ERB COLLECTIVE LABOUR AGREEMENT 

(CLA). 

ERB employees expressed interest to join the Botswana 

Public Employees Union (BOPEU) and having met 

the required threshold, ERB recognised BOPEU as 
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a bargaining partner in labour related matters. This 

culminated into the signing of the Collective Labour 

Agreement in December 2020. This move is a welcome 

development as it will assist the Board in better managing 

employee relations with consultation and advice from 

the Labour Union.

REGISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYED 

ENGINEERS/PROFESSIONALS

In order to enhance monitoring capability through 

strategic collaborations, discussions were held with the 

Directorate of Public Service Management (DPSM) and 

it was noticed that government employs most of the 

engineering professionals and is also the one spending 

the most funds in developmental projects in which the 

professionals partake. Compliance with the ER Act on 

the part of Government Ministries, Departments and 

Agencies is lacking/slow. It is evident that Government 

does not strictly apply the law to aid in preventing 

those without registration from practicing, either as its 

employees or service providers. Most of the Government 

employed engineering staff have not attempted to apply 

for registration and those who have do not regularly 

renew their annual Practicing Certificates. Collaboration 

discussions with DPSM are ongoing for ERB to be able 

to facilitate government engineering professionals to 

comply with the ER Act.

Achieving through others & collaborations (cont.)



Uphold high standards 
of engineering
MEMBERSHIP OF THE INTERNATIONAL 

ENGINEERING ALLIANCE

In its pursuit of ensuring that the regulation regime in 

Botswana places a role in the advancement of engineering 

professionals’ careers, the Board approved a proposal and 

project for ERB to embark on a journey to be a member 

of the International Engineering Alliance. This is a ‘global 

not-for-profit organization” made up of members across 

seven international agreements that govern the recognition 

of engineering education qualifications and professional 

competence. This initiative is in line with ERB’s objective of 

advancing and promoting the standards of engineering in 

Botswana with the intent to advance its long-term strategy 

of playing a meaningful role in Botswana’s education 

standards, as well as facilitating for mobility of local 

engineering professionals. 

The Board in this regard has agreed to allow ERB to 

work towards IEA membership under the mentorship of 

the Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA) and in 

collaboration with BQA for the education standards. This 

project aim is to facilitate for the following:

Application to be a provisional member of the IEA 

accords and agreements with ECSA as a Mentor.

Setting up a committee that will deal with quality 

assurance of engineering educational standards to 

facilitate for the implementation of the BQA MoU and 

Framework, which entails registration of qualifications 

into the National Credit and Qualifications Framework 

and accreditation of engineering programmes.

Implementation of the above in a phased approach 

starting with the immediate need to register engineering 

programmes into the NCQF. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

This objective in 2020/21 started with the signing of 

an agreement and framework of collaboration with 

Botswana Qualifications Authority (BQA) following the 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) in 2017. A total 

of seven programmes were assessed for Botswana 

Qualifications Authority through its collaboration with ERB. 

BQA and ERB formed the Education and Accreditation 

Committee (a sub-committee of the Standards and 

Professional Practice Committee of the Board) whose 

mission is to facilitate the development and implementation 

of education Policies and Standards which include 

programme accreditation, qualification evaluation and 

recognition, Continuing Professional Development. It also 

has the responsibility to attend to matters pertaining to 

education quality assurance processes in line with local 

and international standards and support the effectiveness 

of the Board in relation to these matters.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE ENGINEER 

CATEGORY

When engineering professionals advance in their 

engineering careers they transition into leadership and 

executive positions where they play a greater role in 

engineering management and decision making. The 

Engineers Registration Board has seen the need to 

recognize engineers working at very high levels of 

industry, government and security – these are people whose 

decisions affect engineers, business, the engineering 

profession and the community. The Engineering Executives 

(EngExec) are expected to be powerful advocates for 

engineering across the country.

The objective is to ensure that the profession maintains 

these professionals in our network since they can play a key 

role in advocacy for regulation and critical partnerships 

for the advancement of the engineering profession. 

30
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Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

The EngExec category, benchmarked from Engineers 

Australia, is meant to provide a platform where these 

executives can come together and provide stewardship 

in the promotion of engineering in Botswana. They are 

expected to have be able to influence policy, technology 

and ensure that professionals and the country can 

compete in the global stage.

We will have achieved success when:

Young engineers can clearly map out their career 

path in terms of the skills and competencies they 

wish to acquire to progress into the leadership roles 

they aspire;

Engineers with the EngExec post-nominal find they 

have a competitive edge when seeking new positions; 

Business and industry leaders begin listing EngExec 

on their selection criteria and actively seeking out 

engineers with this recognition;

More and more engineers are appointed as senior 

managers, CEOs and Directors of small and large 

companies; and 

Engineers filling the most prominent leadership roles 

are regarded as the norm.

GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENGINEERS 

REGISTRATION ACT

There is a need to emphasise to other agencies of 

government, e.g., Labour and Immigration, DPSM as well as 

PPADB with regard engagement of firms or individuals 

without the requisite registrations. The Board initiated a 

process to have formal collaborations with some of these 

agencies, but here and there you find that compliance 

with the ER Act is still not enforced. 

After the MoU signing by ERB Registrar Mr. Dennis A. Olaotse 
(L) and PPADB Executive Chairperson Mr. Elijah T. Motshedi (R
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Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

05

Practicing Certificate Renewals Statistics

PRACTICING CERTIFICATE ISSUANCE STATISTICS (APRIL 2020 - MARCH 2021)

PRACTICING CERTIFICATES STATISTICS (APRIL 2020 - MARCH 2021)
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l

Practicing Certificate Renewals

Table 8: Practicing Certificate Renewals

Table 9: The yearly renewals as a percentage of the total number of engineering professionals registered at the end of March 2021

During April 2020 to March 2021, 2804 (70%) renewals 

were recorded against a target of 4,017. The table above 

also depicts the yearly renewals as a percentage of the 

total number of engineering professionals registered at 

the end of March 2021 and in total it is 35%. 



2020/2021
annual reportethical engineering practice

33

Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

Figure 15: Practicing Certificates Statistics (Apr 20 -Mar 21)

Figure 16: Practicing Certificates Statistics - Percentage of 
Actual Renewals

Practicing Certificates Statistics (Apr 20 -Mar 21)
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Practicing Certificates Statistics - 
Percentage of Actual Renewals

From the analysis of the Engineering Professionals 

practicing certificates renewals for the past financial 

year, it shows that the numbers are seriously declining, 

and this might be due to Covid 19 pandemic, which 

has affected all the sectors of the economy. Even the 

registration of the Engineering professionals is seriously 

affected.

CPD Policy Implementation

The CPD policy implementation commenced in January 

2017 and in January 2020, the first 3-year cycle was 

reached. As an activity of our Monitoring Function, there 

was an evaluation (or an audit) of the CPD points 

accumulated by the Engineering Professionals carried 

out after the end of the first 3-year cycle, since the policy 

came into effect.

CPD runs in 3-year cycles, during which period every 

person registered in the Professional Category is required 

to accumulate 15 credits in order to retain registration. 

In any one year, the registered person is required to 

accumulate a minimum of 3 credits. Additional credits 

earned in any one year may be carried over to the 

subsequent years of the three-year cycle. It is required that 

annually, when registrants apply for renewal of Practicing 

Certificates, they record with ERB CPD activities for that 

period to be assessed for compliance with the CPD policy 

requirements.

A systematic random sampling of the professionals was 

done and a total sample of 858 Engineering Professionals 

were evaluated as per the below frequency distribution 

table.
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Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

Frequency Distribution for Engineering Professionals CPD Credits accumulation
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Total

67

0

9

26

51

44

40

39

86

54

66

79

63

60

45

129

858

7.81

0

1.05

3.03

5.94

5.13

4.66

4.54

10.02

6.29

7.69

9.21

7.34

6.99

5.24

15.03

100.0

Number of CPD Points 
Accumulated

Number of  Engineering 
Professionals (Frequency)

Relative Frequency (%)

Table 10: Frequency Distribution for Engineering Professionals CPD Credits accumulation

The table above shows that from the sample, only 15.03 

% of Engineering Professionals were able to accumulate 

15 or more CPD credits during the 3-year cycle. The 

expectation is that all Engineering Professionals whose 

CPD cycles began at the end of 2017 should have 

accumulated 15 credits at the end of the 3-year cycle 

in order to retain registration and be able to apply for 

renewal of Practicing Certificates.
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Accumulated CPD credits by Engineering 
Professionals

Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

The figure below is a graphical representation of the accumulated CPD credits by Engineering professionals
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The following issues were established during the audit/

evaluation of 858 professionals whose cycle ended in 

January 2020:

67 Professionals had earned or accumulated no CPD 

credits; 129 had accumulated 15 or more credits and 

662 had accumulated between 2 and 14 credits. 

When the 2020 renewals were done, from October 

2019 there was an omission whereby the policy 

provision stipulating the requirement for accumulation 

of 15 credits was not applied. Therefore, engineers 

managed to renew without having reached the 

required credits at the end of their cycle.

The audit showed that 75% of the Engineering 

Professionals were noncompliant with the Policy.

The secretariat requires the annual practicing fees 

paid by the engineers for its sustainability. 

Figure 17: Accumulated CPD credits by Engineering Professionals

Due to the challenges identified above; a provision in 

the CPD Policy on non-compliance was applied which 

allows for registrants to be given a further 12 months in 

which to comply or be required to follow an approved 

remedial programme of CPD within a period prescribed 

by ERB.
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Uphold high standards of engineering (cont.)

Table 11: Number of detected incidents quarterly from April 2020 - March 2021

Decrease Malpractice

To effectively monitor engineering practices, a toll-free 

line initiative was introduced to improve processes, 

procedures and customer engagement. Nonetheless, 

receiving of incidents reports through telephones and 

e-mails continued and a total of twenty-one incidents 

were received.

The table below depicts the number of detected incidents 

quarterly from April 2020 - March 2021

Quarter 1 (April 2020 – June 2020)

Quarter 2 (July 2020 – September 2020)

Quarter 3 (October 2020 – November 2020)

Quarter 4 (January 2021 – March 2021)

Total

6

4

6

5

21

Quarter (April 2020 – March 2021) Number of Detected Incidents



People and service 
delivery

Several staff members have tested positive to 

COVID-19, and it was fortunate that they all recovered. 

All other staff members have been identified as 

contacts and have been subjected to isolations. The 

effect has been disruptions from the normal office 

operations, although management has been quick 

to avail resources to make it possible for employees 

to work from home (availability of internet at staff 

homes, connectivity of ERB networks from homes, 

availing staff furniture loans, development of the Work 

from Home Policy, etc.). These measures have made 

it possible for ERB to implement a work schedule in 

which teams are weekly alternating between working 

from the office and working from home, to reduce 

congestion at the office, and thereby reducing the 

risk of transmission of the virus from the office. ERB 

has also successfully introduced a system to allow 

provision of services to its clients without them walking 

into offices (this includes couriering of certificates, 

online registration process, and making payments to 

ERB without visiting our offices).

The effect of COVID-19 on ERB financials as expressed 

in the financials comparatives against the previous 

financial results shows a decline in revenues for the 

financial year, and the expenditure for the financial year 

was also low due to subdued operational activities for 

the same period.

COVID-19 IMPACT

ICT SYSTEMS

The organization recognises the importance of leveraging 

on technology to improve its effectiveness and efficiency 

in service delivery. Significant investments were made in 

acquiring relevant hardware and software to improve the 

capacity of the organization in this area. The key highlights 

are the introduction of the Enterprise Resource Planning 

system (ERP), the upgrade of the servers, the procurement 

of tablets and introduction of the electronic meetings 

packs, and the provision of network connectivity at staff 

homes (to facilitate a work from home programme). 

These have greatly improved the service delivery of 

the organization and it is the foundation on the drive 

to move towards a paperless operation. Currently the 

organization is in a phase in which it is enhancing and 

automating the remaining manual processes.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (PMS) & 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

The organization utilizes a Performance Management 

System (PMS) to assist staff at all levels to enhance their 

performance and maximize their potential contribution 

to the success of the Board as well as to provide a 

mechanism for determining reward for staff performance. 

In an effort to bridge gaps identified through PMS the 

Board continued in its effort to train the secretariat in 

various areas key to service delivery during the financial 

year 2020/2021. Although some planned short-term 

trainings were cancelled by the service providers; 

37
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People and service delivery (cont.)

Table 12: The Board continued in its effort to train the secretariat in various areas key to service delivery during the financial year 
2020/2021.

ICT Officer 

Finance & Admin Manager

Finance & Admin Manager

Assistant Accounts Officer

Assistant Accounts Officer

Monitoring Manager

Assistant Admin Officer

Registration Customer 
Service Assistant

Receptionist

Admin Officer

Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Accounts Officer

Personal Assistant

Information Technology 
Infrastructure 
Library- Foundation & 

Practitioner

Certificate In Digital 
Innovation For Finance

Certificate In Data 
Analytics

Msc- Strategic 
Management

 

Certicate in SAP

Diploma: Monitoring 
And Evaluation

Cips Level 5

Customer Service

ICDL

OHS

Masters In Pyscology

OHS

MBA

Diploma Records 
Management 

The Knowledge 
Academy

Association Of 
Certified 
Chartered 

Accountants

Association Of 
Certified 
Chartered 

Accountants

Botswana 
Accountancy 

College

Botswana 
Accountancy 

College

IDM

Golden Links

UB

Logan Business 
College

IDM

UNICAF

IDM

UNICAF

IDM

Short Term

Short Term 
(Self-Sponsored)

Short Term 

(Self-Sponsored)

Long Term

Short Term

Long Term

Long Term

Short Term

Short Term

Short Term

Long Term

Short Term

Long Term

Long Term

90 Days 
Commenced 
In The Last 

Quarter.

April 2020

October 2020

1.5 Years 
Starting 
Aug 21

Completed

1.5 Years To 
Be Completed 
In June 2021

Completed

Completed

Ongoing

Completed

Completed

Completed

1.5 Years

1.5 Years

Position Training Instituition Type Period
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STAFF WELFARE AND STAFF RETREAT 

It is worth noting that three employees achieved Five 

(5) year anniversaries during the year, being the CEO/ 

Registrar, Accounts Officer and Standards Officer. It was 

unfortunate that the Standards Officer left the organization 

in March 2021.

The 2020/2021 Staff Retreat was held at Manong Lodge 

on 4-6th December 2020, and it was a major success 

that rejuvenated the workforce amid the COVID-19 

difficulties. The main - purpose of the retreat was to allow 

employees to have a refresher update on the current 

Strategic Plan, their understanding of it, and identify 

the challenges associated with its delivery. There was 

also a session on group motivation therapy which was 

themed Happy mind, Happy Soul. The retreat has over 

the years become an important and welcome factor 

in ERB Culture. The following happy photos illustrates 

some of the activities at the event;

People and service delivery (cont.)
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Statement of Responsbility by the Members of the
Board for the year ended 31 March 2021

2020/2021
annual reportethical engineering practice

The members of the board of Engineers Registration Board are responsible for the annual financial statements and all 

other information presented therewith. Their responsibility includes the maintenance of true and fair financial records 

and the preparation of annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 

in the manner required by the Engineers Registration (Amendment) Act, 2013.

The Engineers Registration Board (“ERB”) maintains systems of internal control, which are designed to provide reasonable 

assurance that the records accurately reflect its transactions and to provide protection against serious misuse or loss 

of Board’s assets. The members of the board are also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance 

and monitoring of these systems of internal financial control. Nothing has come to the attention of the members of 

the board to indicate that any significant breakdown in the functioning of these systems has occurred during the year 

under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. The members of the board 

have no reason to believe that the Board will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future, based on the continuous 

support by the Government of Botswana through the Ministry of Infrastructure and Housing Development.

Our external auditors conduct an examination of the financial statements in conformity with International Standards 

on Auditing, which include tests of transactions and selective tests of internal accounting controls. Regular meetings 

are held between management and our external auditors to review matters relating to internal controls and financial 

reporting. The external auditors have unrestricted access to the members of the board.

The annual financial statements on pages 8 to 30 and supplementary information on Annexure 1 were authorised for 

issue by the members of the board on  29th April 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Member of the board Member of the board
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Independent Auditor’s Report

31 March 2021

TO THE MINISTER OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Engineers Registration Board set out on pages 8 to 30, which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 

notes to the annual financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of 

our report, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Engineers 

Registration Board as at 31 March 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for qualified opinion

Fee income

Included in Note 8: Revenue, is fee income amounting to P8, 221, 038. The board in common with other organisations 

of similar nature, receives fee income which we cannot satisfy ourselves of its completeness until such income is 

included in the books of the organisation. For these reasons, we are unable to express an opinion of whether or not 

all such income has been fully recorded in records of the Board but we are not aware of any circumstances that any 

income has not been brought into account.

Trade receivables: Non- compliance with IFRS 9

As per the requirements of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments that do not contain a significant financing component, 

are required to recognise loss allowance throughout the lifetime of the trade receivable. The trade receivables are 

monitored by the Board at the end of each reporting period, and they are written off when there is no reasonable 

expectation of recovery/evidence of impairment at the end of the reporting period. This constitutes a departure from 

the requirements of IFRS 9 on the measurement and recognition of allowance for credit losses on trade receivable.

As at 31 March 2021, the Board has a balance of P 1, 624, 024 as trade and other receivables on the statements on 

the Statements of Financial Position, against which no allowance for credit losses was measured or recognised as per 
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

the requirements of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The impact of the departure on the statements of Comprehensive 

Income and Statements of Financial Position on Trade and Other receivable balance could not be ascertained due to 

the absence of required information.

Contract liabilities

As explained in Note 7 Income received in advance is money deposited into ERB Bank account by engineers for their 

fees which is the Deferred Income while Deposits - Prospective members is money deposited into our account by 

Organizations that employ engineers also on behalf of their employees and this account is Other Payables. These 

cannot be recognised as revenue until the registration process is completed. Contract liabilities recognised in the 

financial statements amounted to P2, 459, 752 and deferred income of P 1, 146, 848 to which a significant portion 

is relating to registration fees for applications pending approval, most of the balances relating to payments received 

in prior years. We are unable to confirm the completeness and existence of this liability due to lack of documentary 

evidence to support whether these amounts are still payable or pending approval.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial statements section 

of our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B) (IESBA Code) and other independence 

requirements applicable to performing audits of annual financial statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements 

applicable to performing audits in Botswana. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 26 to the annual financial statements which indicates the effects of COVID 19 on the operations 

of the board. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 

annual financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the annual 

financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included the following:Revenue received from members

We obtained a list of fees recorded as income in 

advance, and on a sample basis through inspection of 

underlying documentation such as bank statements and 

members register, we evaluated whether these have been 

appropriately accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15. 

We could not satisfy ourselves of its completeness until 

such income is included in the books of the organisation

Revenue from registration fees, application fees, 

and practicing fees collected from existing and 

prospective members during the year ended 31 

March 2021, represents a significant portion of 

total revenue for the Board.

Other information

The members of the board are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the documents titled “Engineers Registration Board Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 

March 2020 and ERB Annual Report 2020-2021 which we obtained prior to the date of this report. Other information 

does not include the annual financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the annual financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit 

opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements, or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the members of the board for the Annual Financial Statements

The members of the board are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as the members of the 

board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the annual financial statements, the members of the board 

are responsible for assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members of the board either 

intend to liquidate the Board or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Board’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the members of the board.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the members of the board’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Board to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the annual financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the members of the board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 

our audit.

Mazars

Certified Auditors

Practicing Member: Devika Rayirath

Membership Number: CAP0037 2022

Date:

Gaborone
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue

Operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating surplus (deficit)

Other Operating gains losses 

Finance income

Surplus (Deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive surplus(deficit) for the year

8,581,310 

(16,635,314) 

7,030,793 

(1,023,211) 

28,260

(994,951) 

-

(994,951)

2020Figures (BWP) 2021Note

8,221,038 

(13,196,881) 

7,066,484 

2,090,641 

(18,090) 

5,399

2,077,950 

-

2,077,950

8

9

10

11
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021

10,389,704 

354,508 

10,744,212

55,748 

472,707 

4,068,607 

4,597,062 

15,341,274

8,921,713 

8,921,713

2,758,885 

3,660,676 

6,419,561

15,341,274

20202021Note

10,149,495 

414,345 

10,563,840

55,150 

1,733,051 

5,717,893 

7,506,094 

18,069,934

10,999,663 

10,999,663

3,463,751 

3,606,520 

7,070,271

18,069,934

3 

12

4 

5 

6 

7

Assets

Non-Current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 

Intangible assets

Current assets

Inventory

Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Funds And Liabilities 

Funds and reserves

Accumulated funds

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 

Contract liabilities

Total liabilities

Total funds and liabilities

Figures (BWP)
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Statement of Changes in Funds for the year ended 31 March 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2020

 

Balance at 01 April 2019

Comprehensive income 

Deficit for the year

Balance at 31 March 2020

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Balance at 01 April 2020

Comprehensive income

Surplus for the year

Balance at 31 March 2021

9,916,664

(994,951) 

8,921,713

8,921,713

2,077,950 

10,999,663

TotalFigures (BWP) Accumulated funds

9,916,664

(994,951)

8,921,713

8,921,713

2,077,950

10,999,663
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

221,429 

28,260

249,689

(9,743,997) 

(211,680)

(9,955,677)

-

9,705,988) 

13,774,595

4,068,607

20202021Note

1,932,922 

5,399 

1,938,321

(218,376) 

(70,659) 

(289,035)

-

1,649,286 

4,068,607 

5,717,893

12 

11

3 

12

5

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in operations

Interest income

Net cash sed inoperating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of intangible asset

Net cash used in investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Figures (BWP)
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2021

1. Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 

and in the manner required by the Engineers Registration (Amendment) Act, 2013. The annual financial statements 

have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair 

value and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Botswana Pula.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period except for the adoption of new and revised 

International Financial Reporting Standards as stated in Note 2 to the financial statements.

1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparation of the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 

the application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Impairment of financial assets

The Engineers Registration Board assesses its financial assets for impairment at the end of each reporting period. The 

impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. In 

determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Engineers Registration Board uses 

judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Board’s 

past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in- use calculations 

and fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the assumption may 

change, which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of 

tangible assets.

The Engineers Registration Board reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in 

circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets grouped at the lowest level for which 

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities.

If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for 

each group of assets They are significantly affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply 

and demand, together with economic factors such as exchange rates, interest rates and inflation.
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Accounting policies (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2021

Treatment of grants received from Government 

Taking into account its nature and substance, the Board considers amounts that it receives from the Government to fall 

within the scope of IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. In reaching 

this conclusion, the Board considers the terms attached to each of the grants received and the current practice 

adopted by other parastatals in Botswana. Accordingly, the Board recognises the amounts received in accordance 

with the accounting policy as included in note 1.9. 

1.2 Property, plant, and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

Item

Buildings 

Furniture and fixtures 

Motor vehicles 

Office equipment

IT equipment

Average useful life

50 years 

10 Years 

4 Years 

7 Years 

4 Years

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board;

and

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant, and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs 

incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying 

amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight- line basis over their expected useful lives to their 

estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless it is included 

in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in Statement of 

Comprehensive Income when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from de- recognition of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 

carrying amount of the item.
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1.3 Intangible assets

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Costs that are directly attributable for the installation of identifiable computer software controlled by the Board, and 

that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.

Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their useful lives, which does not exceed four years 

and are tested annually for impairment. 

1.4 Financial instruments

Classification

Financial instruments held by the Board are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. 

Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the Board, as applicable, are as follows:

Financial assets which are equity instruments:

Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss; or

Designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income. (This designation is not available to equity 

instruments which are held for trading, or which are contingent consideration in a business combination).

Amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified 

dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal, and where the instrument is 

held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect contractual cash flows); or

Fair value through other comprehensive income. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of 

the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

principal, and where the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual cash flows and selling the instruments); or

Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification automatically applies to all debt instruments 

which do not qualify as at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income); or

Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can only be applied when it eliminates or 

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch).

There is a significant increase in the credit risk for receivables as at the reporting date.

Financial assets which are debt instruments:
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Amortised cost; or

Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. (This applies to contingent consideration in a

business combination or to liabilities which are held for trading); or

Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can be applied when it eliminates or 

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch; the liability forms part of a group of financial instruments managed 

on a fair value basis; or it forms part of a contract containing an embedded derivative and the entire contract is 

designated as at fair value through profit or loss).

There is liquidity risk of the board having difficulty in paying its liabilities if they are not kept at a low level.

Financial liabilities:

Note 16 Financial assets by category and Note 17 Financial liabilities by category presents the financial instruments 

held by the Board based on their specific classifications. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are 

recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 

assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Board becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments.

The Board classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 

liability, or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition, and measurement of each type of financial instrument 

held by the Board are presented below:

Trade and other receivables

Classification

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, statutory receivable and prepayments, are classified as financial 

assets subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 16).

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the Board’s business model is to 

collect the contractual cash flows on trade and other receivables.
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the Board becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the receivable initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative 

amortisation (interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity 

amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

Impairment

The Board recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables, excluding statutory 

receivable and prepayments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date.

The Board measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over 

the expected life of the receivable. 

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The Board makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedient to the determination of expected credit losses on 

trade and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that 

are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current and forecast direction 

of conditions at the reporting date, including the time value of money, where appropriate.

The loss allowance is calculated on a collective basis for all trade and other receivables in totality. No loss allowance 

was recognised on trade and other receivables.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of 

trade and other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account. The impairment loss is included in operating 

expenses in Statement of Comprehensive Income as a movement in credit loss allowance.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have 

been transferred and the Board has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 

effective interest rate method.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Board has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 

is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount 

of the obligation can be made.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a member or a prospective member for which the 

Board has received consideration. If the consideration received before the Board transfers goods or services to the 

member, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the performance obligations under the contract is satisfied.

Derecognition

The Board derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Board obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration 

paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 

in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at amortised cost. 

1.5 Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 

between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 

asset. This asset is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Board assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists, the Board estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 

value in use.
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1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to 

its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 

periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of those assets is estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 

periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.7 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 

extension leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non - monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the 

period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 

increase their entitlement or, in the case of non – accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

1.8 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

the Board has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation; and

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 

reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
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the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for 

the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured 

as a provision.

1.9 Government Grants

Government grants are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the 

amounts receivable from government in the furtherance of the Board’s objectives.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that 

they are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to assets, including non- monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement 

of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying 

amount of the asset.

1.10 Revenue

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable 

for services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue from registration fees, application fees and practising fees are recognised when the performance obligations 

are satisfied.

Application fees - when the application form is submitted for assessment. Registration fees – upon completion of the 

registration process. 

Practicing fees – when membership is renewed, and the practicing certificate is issued. Interest is recognised, in profit 

or loss, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.11. Inventories

Inventory consists of promotional items. They are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined 

using the first in first out costing method. The cost of goods for resale comprises all costs incurred to bring them to 

their present location and condition.



ENGINEERS REGISTRATION BOARD

20

Accounting policies (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2021

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Board has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 

financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure initiative

The amendment clarifies and align the definition of ‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the 

application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2020.

The Board has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2021 annual financial statements. 

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Disclosure initiative

The amendment clarifies and align the definition of ‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the 

application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2020.

The Board has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2021 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The Board has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and 

are mandatory for the Board’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2021 or later periods:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1

The amendment changes the requirements to classify a liability as current or non-current. If an entity has the right at 

the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 

then the liability is classified as non-current.

If this right is subject to conditions imposed on the entity, then the right only exists, if, at the end of the reporting period, 

the entity has complied with those conditions.

In addition, the classification is not affected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. 

Therefore, if the right exists, the liability is classified as non-current even if management intends or expects to settle the 

liability within twelve months of the reporting period. Additional disclosures would be required in such circumstances.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2023.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Board’s annual financial statements.
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3. Property, plant and equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2021 

Opening net book amount

Additions

Disposals 

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount 

At 31 March 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2020

Opening net book amount

Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount 

At 31 March 2020

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

10,389,704 

218,376

(25,336)

(433,249) 

10,149,495

12,359,304

(2,209,809)

10,149,495 

1,097,281 

9,743,997

(451,574) 

10,389,704 

12,199,758 

(1,810,054)

10,389,704

TotalMotor 
vehicles

Furniture 
and fixtures

Office 
buildings

Computer 
equipment

Office
equipment

123,928

- 

(92,946) 

30,982 

500,131

(469,149) 

30,982 

216,874

 -

(92,946) 

123,928

500,131

(376,203) 

123,928

364,123

144,200  

(7,120) 

(78,635) 

422,568 

961,733 

(539,165) 

422,568 

438,959 

3,800

(78,636) 

364,123 

826,433 

(462,310) 

364,123

9,604,980

-

-

(97,020) 

9,507,960 

9,702,000 

(194,040) 

9,507,960 

- 

9,702,000

(97,020) 

9,604,980 

9,702,000 

(97,020) 

9,604,980

198,361

74,176

 -

(115,409)

157,128 

949,087

(791,959) 

157,128

292,563 

38,197

(132,399) 

198,361

874,911

(676,550)

198,361

98,312

- 

(18,216)

(49,239) 

30,857 

246,353

(215,496) 

30,857 

148,885 

-

(50,573) 

98,312 

296,283 

(197,971) 

98,312

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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4 Trade and other receivables

 

 Trade receivables 

 Loss Allowance

 Staff loans 

 Prepayments

 Deposits and other receivable 

5 Cash and cash equivalents

 

 Cash on hand 

 Bank balances

 

 Cash on hand 

 Bank balances

6 Trade and other payables

 

 Trade payables 

 Accrued leave pay 

 Accrued gratuity 

 Other accruals 

256,000

- 

190,307

4,988 

21,412 

472,707 

5,000

4,063,607 

4,068,607

5,000

4,063,607 

4,068,607 

399,514

413,470 

1,491,731 

454,170

2,758,885

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

1,624,024 

(60,000) 

169,027

 -

-

1,733,051

5,000

5,712,893 

5,717,893

5,000

5,712,893 

5,717,893 

661,275 

591,289 

1,681,394 

529,793

3,463,751

The members of the board consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivables to approximate 

their fair value.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in Botswana Pula.

Cash and cash equivalents balances are denominated in Botswana Pula

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the year-end cash and cash equivalents comprise the 

following:

The members of the board consider the carrying value of trade and other payables to approximate their 
fair value.
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in Botswana
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7 Contract liabilities 

 Income received in advance 

 Deposits - Prospective members

8 Revenue

 

 Registration fees 

 Application fees 

 Practising fees 

 Duplicate certificate fee 

 Workshops income

9 Other operating income

 

 Government grant 

 Other operating income

1,241,602 

2,419,074 

3,660,676 

1,718,167 

1,263,250 

4,426,788 

8,167 

1,164,938 

8,581,310 

6,844,600 

186,193 

7,030,793

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

1,146,848 

2,459,672 

3,606,520 

941,974 

1,349,500 

5,774,185 

7,250 

148,129 

8,221,038 

6,933,980 

132,504 

7,066,484

Income received in advance is money deposited into ERB Bank account by engineers for

their fees which is the Deferred Income while Deposits – Prospective members is money deposited into 

our account by Organizations that employ engineers also on behalf of their employees and this account is 

Other Payables. These cannot be recognised as revenue until the registration process is completed.
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10 Operating surplus/deficit

 

 Operating surplus/deficit for the year is stated after accounting  

 for the following:

 Auditors’ remuneration

 Charge for the year

 Under provision for previous year

 Depreciation and amortisation

 Conferences and seminars

 Consulting Fees

 Salaries and Wages

 Rent

 Committee sitting allowances

11 Finance

 

 Interest income on short-term bank deposits

12 Intangible assets

 Computer software

 Net book amount at beginning of year

 Addition 

 Amortisation

 Net book amount at end of year

 

 Cost

 Accumulated amortisation 

 Net book amount

310,722 

-

310,722

566,644

1,507,944 

276,360 

7,952,349 

438,685 

1,133,583 

28,260 

99,036 

211,680 

(115,073) 

354,508 

776,004 

(421,496) 

354,508

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

376,196 

-

376,196 

444,072

24,282

177,980

8,324.032

8,678

892,223 

5,399 

354,508 

70,659 

(10,822) 

414,345 

846,663 

(432,318) 

414,345



14 Related parties

 The Board is established under an Act of parliament and is a state-owned entity. The Government of Botswana

  provides significant income to the Board through operational subventions. The Government has   

 representation through the appointment of members of the Board. Transactions directly with the Government 

 of Botswana are treated as related party

 (a) Ministry of Infrastructure and Housing Development

     (Ministry) - The Board is a parastatal under the Ministry 

 Government grant (Note 9) 

 

 (b) Key management compensation 

 Key management consist of chairman of the board, deputy chairman of the board, other members of the  

 board, chief executive officer and members of other sub committees. Board has paid compensation to  

 key management for the services as shown below:

 Remuneration to key management

 Sitting allowances to board members other members of

 sub committees
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13 Cash generated from operations

 

 Operating loss

 Adjustments for:

 -Depreciation

 -Amortisation

 Outflow from disposal 

 Changes in working capital:

 

 -Trade and other receivables

 -Inventory 

 -Trade and other payables 

 -Contract liabilities

(1,023,211)

451,574 

115,073 

(394,205) 

(16,151) 

814,853 

273,496 

221,429 

6,844,600 

829,525

1,133,583 

1,963,108

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

2,090,641 

433,249 

10,822 

7246

(1.260,334) 

598 

704,866 

(54,156)

1,932,922 

6,933,980 

920,689

892,223 

1,812,912

Note

3

11
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15 Risk management 

 Capital risk management 

 The Board’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going  

 concern in order to provide returns for Board and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 

 capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

16 Financial risk management

 The board’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value  

 interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

 

 Liquidity risk

 The Board’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Board  

 manages liquidity risks through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

 The table below analyses the Board’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the

 remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts  

 disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal  

 their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

 At 31 March 2021

 

 Trade and other payables

 

 At 31 March 2020

 

 

 Trade and other payables

-

-

Between one 

and two years

-

-

Less than  

one year

Between one 

and two years

3,463,751 

3,463,751

less than 

one year

2,758,885 

2,758,885

 Interest rate risk 

 

 As the Board has no significant interest - bearing assets, the Board’s income and operating cash flows are  

 substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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 Credit risk

 Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and other receivable. The Board only deposits

 cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

 Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

 Other receivables 

 Bank 

 Foreign exchange risk

 The Board does not operate internationally and is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

17  Financial assets by category

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

 At amortised cost

 Assets as per the balance sheet

 Other receivables (excluding prepayments and statutory 

 receivable) (Note 4)

 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 

18  Financial liabilities by category

 

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

 Assets as per the balance sheet

 Trade and other payables (Note 5)

467,719 

4,063,607

4,531,326 

467,719 

4,063,607 

4,531,326 

2,758,885 

2,758,885

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

1,733,051 

5,712,893 

7,445,944 

1,733,051

5,712,893 

7,445,944

3,463,751 

3,463,751
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19  Credit quality of financial assets

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to

 historical information about counterparty default rates: 

 Group 1

 Trade receivable Not Rated

 

 Group 2

 Other receivables (Note 4) Not rated

 

 Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits (Note 5) 

 (excluding cash in hand)

 

 Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 

 Absa Bank of Botswana Limited 

20  Credit quality of financial assets 

 

 Key:

 Group 1 = new customers (less than 6 months)

 Group 2 = existing customers (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the past

 Group 3 = existing customers (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past. All defaults were fully

 recovered.

 The Board only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any

 one counter-party. The company has deposits with Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited and Barclays Bank of

 Botswana Limited. There are no credit ratings’ available in Botswana.

 

 Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited is a long established bank in Botswana and a subsidiary of Standard Bank 

 in South Africa. Standard Bank South Africa is listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange and has a long

 term credit rating of BBB (Fitch rating).

 Absa Bank of Botswana Limited is listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange and is a subsidiary of Barclays

 plc, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and has a credit rating AAA+ (Fitch rating).

256,000 

211,719

893,196 

3,170,411 

4,063,607

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

1,564,024 

169,027

1,428,710

4,284,183 

5,712,893
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21  Fair value estimation of financial instruments

 Effective 1 January 2013, the Board adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are 

 measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. This requires disclosure of fair value

 measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

	 •	Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	(level	1).

	 •	Inputs	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	level	1	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	liability,	either		

    directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

	 •	Inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	based	on	observable	market	data	(that	is,	unobservable	inputs)

   (level 3).

 The Board does not have any financial instrument measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

22  Expenses by nature 

 Advertising and promotions 

 Committee sitting allowances 

 Computer expenses 

 Conference and seminars 

 Consulting fees

 Depreciation and amortisation 

 Employee costs

 Printing and stationery 

 Registrants background checks 

 Rent

 Travelling expenses 

 Other expenses 

23  Income Tax

 The Board was established through an Act of Parliament and exempt from paying income tax as per the  

 Second Schedule Part I Para (XIV) of the Income Tax Act.

24  Value Added Tax

 The Board was established through an Act of Parliament and the activities of the Board are not considered

 as taxable activities. Therefore, the board is not liable to register for Value Added Tax. 

965,308 

1,133,583 

664,564 

1,507,944 

276,360 

566,644 

7,952,349 

419,447 

83,819 

438,685 

480,761 

2,145,850 

16,635,314

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

376,196 

892,223 

748,111

24,282 

177,980 

444,072

8,324,032 

277,990

- 

8,678

46,703 

1,876,614

13,196,881
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25  Capital commitments

 There were no capital commitments as at the balance sheet date.

26  Operating lease commitments- where the Board is the lessee

 There are no material operating lease commitments arising out of non - cancellable operating lease 

 agreements outstanding at the end of reporting date.

27  Contingencies
 

 There were no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

28  Events after the balance sheet date

 Members of the board have performed an assessment of the COVID19 impact on Engineers Registration

 Board (“the Board”/”ERB”) in terms of going concern of the Board and are of the view that there is no

 significant impact to the going concern of the Board for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 on the basis

 of the following:

 - In the reporting period, five (5) staff members out of Seventeen (17) were infected with the Corona Virus, 

 and they have all but one recovered. The rest of staff members have been identified as contacts and have

 been subjected to tests and quarantine periods as appropriate. The effect has been disruptions from the 

 normal office operations, although management has been quick to avail resources to make it possible

 for employees to work from home (availability of internet at staff homes, connectivity of ERB networks from

 homes, availing staff furniture loans, development of the Work from Home Policy, etc.). These measures

 have made it possible for ERB to implement a work schedule in which teams are on weekly basis alternating 

 between working from the office and working from home, to reduce congestion at the office, and thereby 

 reducing the risk of transmission of the virus from the office.  

 The country’s economic activities have been subdued due to COVID-19 impact and its restrictions, and this

 had on impact ERB as well.

 The Government of Botswana announced that it has set up a National COVID19 Relief Fund to finance the 

 entities affected by COVID19 in Botswana.
 

 ERB has already received the government subventions for the subsequent financial year ending 31 March  

 2021 and approval of subvention for the year ending 31 March 2022.

 ERB has sufficient cash resources to finance its operations in the next financial year.
 

 - The revenue from members is reasonably assured due to the fact that ERB Act requires all non-exempt  

 practicing engineers to obtain a practicing certificate to operate in Botswana.

 There were no other significant events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustments to or 

 disclosures in this annual financial statement.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (cont.) 
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Revenue 

Operating expenses 

Accounting fees

Advertising and promotions

Auditors remuneration

Bank charges

Cleaning

Committee sitting allowances

Computer expenses

Conference and seminars

Consulting fees

Depreciation and amortisation

Donations

Insurance

Legal fees

Motor vehicle expenses

Office expenses

Postage

Printing and stationery

Registrants background checks

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Salaries and wages

Secretarial fees

Security 

Staff welfare 

Subscriptions 

Telephone and fax 

Training expenses 

Travelling expenses 

Other operating income and finance income 

Surplus/ (Defict) from operations

8,581,310

168 

965,308 

310,722 

170,359 

73,640 

1,133,583 

664,564 

1,507,944 

276,360 

566,644

- 

81,937 

147,746 

29,247 

217,589 

315 

419,447 

83,819 

438,685 

88,911 

7,952,349 

75,600 

6,334 

438,151 

24,911 

171,015 

309,205 

480,761

(16,635,314)

7,059,053 

(994,951)

2020Figures (BWP) 2021

8,221,038

-

376,196

405,476

115,883

89,274

892,223

748,111

24,282

177,980

444,072

44,133

136,405

62,402

17,770

272,644

50,520

277,990

-

8,678

107,440

8,324,032

47,040

6,957

311,043

24,688

146,637

28,302

46,703

(13,196,881)

7,053,793

2,077,950

Detailed Income Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The detailed income statement do not form part of the audited financial statements covered by the audit 
opinion on pages 5 to 7.
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Notes
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